
 

 
Village of Lincolnwood 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Special Meeting 

Monday, December 21, 2020 
7:00 P.M. 

 

In accordance with the recently adopted amendments to the Illinois Open Meetings Act permitting the Zoning Board of 
Appeals to conduct a virtual Zoning Board of Appeals meeting, members of the public are allowed to be physically present in 
the Village Board meeting room in Village Hall at 6900 North Lincoln Avenue, subject to room capacity and social 
distancing requirements.  Accordingly, the opportunity to view the virtual meeting at Village Hall is available on a “first 
come, first served” basis.  Those members of the public present at Village Hall will be able to provide real-time comments in 
person on the computer available in the Council Chambers.  Anyone who does not desire, or who is not able, to be physically 
present at Village Hall can watch the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting live by visiting the Village website or by clicking 
www.lincolnwoodil.org/live-cable-channel/. 
 

Those wishing to submit public comments in writing may do so by emailing comments to dhammel@lwd.org prior to the 
commencement of the meeting.  Emails received will be read aloud during the appropriate Public Comment period for each 
matter on the agenda.  We ask that you keep your emailed comments to under 200 words to allow time for others to be heard 
and for the Board to progress through the public meeting agenda.  Thank you for your understanding of these guidelines. 
 

Those unwilling or unable to appear in person but wishing to provide real-time comments to the Zoning Board of Appeals 
may do so by participating from a remote location through GoTo Meeting.  Login information for participating in this manner 
is as follows: 

 WEB-BASED VIDEO PARTICIPATION: https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/723549189 
 AUDIO-ONLY DIAL-IN: (646) 749-3122, ACCESS CODE: 723-549-189 

 

Meeting Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Introduction of ZBA Commissioner Robert Jordan 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
  November 18, 2020 Meeting Minutes  
    

5. Case #ZB-06-20:   3300-3310 West Devon Avenue – Approval of Variations Related to Building 
Façade Materials 

Request:   Consideration of a request by 3300 W. Devon, LLC, Property Owner, to approve 
Variations to allow 1) a commercial façade incorporating high-quality materials on 
less than 75% of the façade area, and 2) allowing the use of an exterior insulation 
finishing system as a façade material at 3300-3310 West Devon Avenue.  During 
this Hearing, the Zoning Board of Appeals may consider any additional relief that 
may be discovered during the review of this case.                  
 

6. Next Meeting: January 20, 2021 
 

7. Public Comment 
 

8. Adjournment 
        Posted:  December 17, 2020 

http://www.lincolnwoodil.org/live-cable-channel/
mailto:dhammel@lwd.org
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/723549189


 
 

DRAFT MEETING MINUTES  
OF THE 

November 18, 2020 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 

LINCOLNWOOD VILLAGE HALL AND 
VIRTUALLY VIA GOTOMEETING 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    MEMBERS ABSENT:       

 Chairman Bruce Heller    Martin Youkhanna 
Rizwan Hussain      
Syed Mudassir 

 Teodor Strat 
Peter Theodore 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  
Doug Hammel, AICP, Community Development Manager 
 

     I. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
Chairman Heller noted a quorum of five members, with Commissioners being present at the 
Council Chambers in Village Hall and/or virtually via GoToMeeting, and called the meeting to 
order at 7:05 p.m. Development Manager notified the group that Commissioner Chris Nickell 
resigned from the ZBA earlier in the week.  
 

    II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

   III. Approval of August 19, 2020 ZBA Meeting Minutes 
 

Chairman Heller asked if any Commissioners had any comments regarding the August 19, 2020 
meeting minutes. Hearing none, Commissioner Theodore made a motion to approve the minutes 
as revised, and that motion was seconded by Commissioner Hussain.  
 
Aye:  Mudassir, Theodore, Hussain, Strat, and Heller 
Nay:  None  
Motion Approved:  5-0 
 

IV. Case #ZB-05-20: 6421 & 6425 North Longmeadow Avenue – Special Fence 
and Variation Approvals for Fences Along Devon Avenue   

 
Prior to his presentation on the Case, Development Manager Hammel noted the ways by which 
the public can provide comment to the ZBA as part of this public hearing. He then provided an 
overview of Case #ZB-05-20.  He outlined the subject properties and detailed the non-compliant 



Village of Lincoln Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes                                                                     November 18, 2020 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

fences. He then overviewed the relevant sections of the code (section 3.13) relating to fences. 
Two ZBA approvals were required to make these fences compliant; 1) approval of special fences 
on through lots and 2) approval of a variation to allow for a solid fence. Various considerations 
were then discussed, including other locations in the Village where solid fences abut public 
streets, and potential conditions of approval based on the location of the fence. Staff 
recommended that, if the ZBA in inclined to recommend approval of the requested relief, that the 
Petitioner be required to either relocate fence to the Petitioners’ respective properties, or seek 
approval from IDOT to allow the fences to remain in that location. Such approval should also 
include a request to remove the existing chain link fence, and an easement agreement to allow 
the Village to maintain a light pole enclosed by the fence. Development Manager Hammel 
discussed prior similar cases, variation standards, and stated that staff had not received public 
comment regarding this request.  

Development Manager Hammel reiterated staff’s official recommendation as follows, that a 
recommendation for approval include the conditions presented by staff related to either 1) 
relocation of the fence or 2) approval from IDOT to place the fence in its current location, 
removal of the existing chain link fence, and the recording of an access easement to allow the 
Village to maintain the existing light pole. 

The Petitioners, Neil Machaya and Zamir Kothawala, were sworn in. Mr. Machaya stated that 
the previous fence was in poor condition and this new fence was necessary to keep out debris as 
well as passersby. The petitioner presented evidence and photos of the old fence and new fence. 
Commissioners noted that the new fence is similar in size and opacity to the fence that 
previously existed in the same location. Chairman Heller reiterated the facts of the case and 
opened the discussion for comment from other Commissioners. Commissioner Hussain said 
staff’s proposal was a fair compromise. Commissioner Theodore asked how frequently the light 
pole needs to be accessed. Staff was currently unaware of that level of frequency. Chairman 
Heller asked if there was any additional comments from the public. There were none.  

Commissioner Hussain made a motion to approve the requested relief with the conditions 
presented by staff with the additional condition that IDOT denial would result in the relocation 
of the fence. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Strat.    

Aye:  Mudassir, Theodore, Hussain, Strat, and Heller 
Nay:  None 
Motion Approved:  5-0  
 
    V. 2021 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Dates 
 
The proposed 2021 ZBA meeting dates were presented by Development Manager Hammel. 
Commissioner Theodore made a motion to approve the 2021 ZBA meeting dates. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Hussain.  
 
Aye:  Mudassir, Theodore, Hussain, Strat, and Heller 
Nay:  None 
Motion Approved:  5-0  
 
 



Village of Lincoln Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes                                                                     November 18, 2020 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

   VI. Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals is scheduled for Wednesday, December 16, 2020. 
Chairman Heller noted Commissioner Nickell’s resignation and thanked him for his service.  
 
 VII.  Public Comment 
 
The public was asked if anyone participating in the meeting would like to address the Zoning Board 
of Appeals.  Let the record state that no one came forward. 
 

VIII. Adjournment 
 
Motion to recommend adjournment was made by Commissioner Theodore and seconded by 
Commissioner Hussain.  Meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 
 
Aye:  Mudassir, Theodore, Hussain, Strat, and Heller 
Nay:  None  
Motion Approved: 5-0 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Jake Litz 
Management Analyst  
Fire Department/Community Development  



 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

Case #ZB-06-20 
December 21, 2020 

 

 

Subject Property:  
3300-3310 West Devon Avenue 

 

 
 
  

Zoning District:  B-2 General 

Business 

 

Petitioner:  3300 West Devon, LLC, 

Property Owner 
 

Requested Action: Variation to allow 

the use of an exterior insulation 

finishing system (“EIFS”) as an exterior 

building material. 

Nature of Request:  The Petitioner seeks a Variation to allow for the use of an exterior 

insulation finishing system (“EIFS”) as an exterior building material on a structure being 

renovated as an event space/dining hall. 
 

Notification:  Notice was published in the Chicago Tribune on December 3, 2020, a Public 

Hearing sign was installed at the subject property at 3300-3310 West Devon Avenue, and 

mailed notices dated December 3, 2020 were sent to properties within 250 feet. 
 

Summary of Request 
Eddie Kheneiser, on behalf of 3300 West Devon, LLC, Property Owner, seeks approval of a 

Variation to allow for the use of an exterior insulation finishing system (“EIFS”) as an exterior 

building material on a structure being renovated as an event space/dining hall.  The on-going 

renovation is related to the expansion of an existing restaurant at 3300 West Devon Avenue. 

The expansion will accommodate an event space/dining hall in a commercial building located 

at 3310 West Devon Avenue.  The existing restaurant and future event space/dining hall will 

be complimentary uses under the management of the same entity. 

 



3300-3310 West Devon Avenue                                                                                                  December 21, 2020 

                                                                                                                                                                    2 

As part of the on-going renovation, the 

Petitioner submitted plans showing the 

use of new synthetic stucco on the south 

and east elevations of the structure that 

will host the new event space/dining hall. 

Those elevations note that such a 

material would match the existing 

synthetic stucco on the existing 

restaurant building. 

 

 

Required Approval 
Sections 6.04(3) and 6.04(4) establish 

requirements related to the use of certain 

façade materials for commercial 

development in the Village.  Specifically, 

Section 6.04(4) states that “the use of 

concrete block, precast panels, and/or 

masonry stucco is permitted as a minor 

or accent building material, but is not 

permitted for use as a predominant 

building material….  The use of exterior 

insulation finishing systems ("EIFS") and 

metal and vinyl lap board siding is 

prohibited.”  For the purposes of this 

zoning provision, the proposed synthetic 

stucco material is considered an “exterior 

insulation finishing system”.  Therefore, 

a Variation from Section 6.04(4) is 

required. 

 

Considerations 
As part of its consideration of the 

requested Variation, the ZBA may 

consider the following factors that were 

identified in the Petitioner’s application: 

 

Materials on the Existing Restaurant 

Façade 

As noted in the elevations provided by the 

Petitioner, the façade of the existing 

restaurant is covered largely in an EIFA 

material.  Based on Village records, that 

façade appears to have been installed in 

2013.  The Zoning Code was subsequently 

amended in 2014 to include the current 

language that prohibits the use of EIFS. 

 

Existing 

Restaurant 

Future Event 

Space/ Dining 

Hall 

Location of Existing Restaurant and Future 

Event Space/Dining Hall 

Façade Areas Being Improved as Part of 

Ongoing Renovation 



3300-3310 West Devon Avenue                                                                                                  December 21, 2020 

                                                                                                                                                                    3 

Previous Use of EIFS on the Subject 

Façade 

The portion of the property being 

renovated for use as the event space/dining 

hall has EIFS as its façade material until it 

was recently removed as part of the 

renovation.  That pre-existing EIFS 

material was installed prior to the 2014 

code amendment that prohibited the use of 

that material. 
 

Public Comment 

Staff received one comment from an adjacent property owner objecting to the Petitioner’s 

request.  He is concerned with potential impacts to his property based on the fact that his 

building directly abuts the building on the subject property.  The email and supporting 

documents provided by the concerned property owner are attached to this report. 
 

Variation Standards 

Section 5.15(7) of the Zoning Ordinance establishes standards against that are to be used by 

the Zoning Board of Appeals when determining the appropriateness of a Variation request. 

These standards are included as an attachment to this report. 
 

Prior Similar Cases 
The most recent Variation requests related to on-site parking capacity have been heard by the 

Plan Commission as part of larger zoning requests. Those cases are summarized below. 
 

7101 North Lincoln Avenue (2019) 

The Petitioner sought a Variation regarding exterior façade materials as part of the 

redevelopment of an auto dealership building.  The Plan Commission supported the use of 

decorative aluminum panels based on the Petitioner’s testimony that such materials are 

consistent with requirements for a specific auto brand and are durable. The Village Board 

approved the use of these materials as part of a more comprehensive amendment to an existing 

Planned Unit Development. 
 

6900 North McCormick Boulevard (2019) 

The Petitioner sought a Variation regarding exterior façade materials as part of the exterior 

renovation of an existing auto dealership building.  The Plan Commission supported the use of 

decorative aluminum panels based on the Petitioner’s testimony that such materials are 

consistent with requirements for a specific auto brand and are durable.  The Village Board 

approved the use of these materials as part of an amendment to an existing Planned Unit 

Development. 
 

7373 North Cicero Avenue (2019) 

The Petitioner sought a Variation regarding exterior façade materials as part of the 

development of a new auto dealership.  The Plan Commission supported the use of decorative 

aluminum panels based on the Petitioner’s testimony that such materials are consistent with 

requirements for a specific auto brand and are durable.  The Village Board approved the use of 

these materials as part of an overall development plan. 

 



3300-3310 West Devon Avenue                                                                                                  December 21, 2020 

                                                                                                                                                                    4 

3333 West Touhy Avenue (2019) 

The Petitioner sought a Variation regarding exterior façade as part of the renovation of an 

anchor space in the Town Center Mall.  The Plan Commission supported the use of decorative 

aluminum panels based on the Petitioner’s desire to modernize the exterior of the space and 

make it consistent with the tenant’s brand.  A portion proposed as EIFS was revised to be 

cementitious stucco prior to consideration by the Village Board.  The Village Board ultimately 

approved the request. 

 

6755 North Cicero Avenue (2017) 

The Petitioner sought a Variation related to building materials so allow a portion of the 

commercial façade to be masonry stucco.  The Petitioner testified that masonry stucco is a 

durable material and is an appropriate complement to the other portions of the façade that 

include brick or granite.  The Plan Commission supported the request, and the Village Board 

approved the Variation in conjunction with several other Special Uses and Variations. 

 

Conclusion 

The Petitioner seeks a Variation from Section 6.04(4) to allow for the use of an exterior 

insulation finishing system (“EIFS”) as an exterior building material on a structure being 

renovated as an event space/dining hall. 

 

Documents Attached 
1. Zoning Variation Application 

2. Relevant Building Plans 

3. Public Comment 

4. Relevant Regulations 

 



















Attachment #3. Public Comment 
Email received on December 16, 2020 
Doug, 

I have attached one of many articles about EFIS. 

My concerns about the product are echoed by millions of dollars in lawsuits. 

There is a reason that many municipalities, including Lincolnwood, do not allow the product to be used. 

Additionally, the address in question wants to use the product over an existing substrate of a building 
that is attached in some locations to mine. 

I strongly object to the approval of the use of this product on any application, let alone where it effects 
my property.  

There are many panel systems that would be appropriate and safe for this application. 

Please include this information in packet circulation. 

Steve Siegel 

(subsequent pages include documentation provided as part of this public comment) 

  



   



  



  



 



Attachment #4. Relevant Regulations 
6.04 Commercial, institutional and civic building design standards. 

(1) Creative layout and design of the buildings within commercial, institutional, or civic development 
is encouraged. The architectural quality should be expressed on all four sides of a building and the 
utilization of a campus-style layout is encouraged in large scale developments. Creative layout and 
design will help decrease the overall mass of the development, to prevent monotony, and to 
improve the aesthetic quality of the development. 

(2) To improve the future use and adaptability of the commercial, institutional, and civic structures, 
buildings should not be designed in a manner that limits the ability of the building to be reused for 
other users. 

(3) All commercial, institutional and civic buildings shall be designed in accordance with the 
following: 

a. Buildings must consist of solid and durable facades on all sides of a building facing a public 
street and shall be compatible with the character and scale of the surrounding area. 

b. Not less than 75% of each exterior building elevation shall incorporate high-quality materials 
from the following list: 

i. Brick with a minimum thickness of 2.25 inches; 

ii. Natural stone; 

iii. Sandstone; 

iv. Other native stone; 

v. Pre-cast decorative stone; 

vi. Glass; or 

vii. Precast stone or precast concrete, but only if the building is located in the M-B Light 
Manufacturing/Business District. Notwithstanding any provision of this Zoning Ordinance to 
the contrary, precast stone and precast concrete will not be permitted on a building 
elevation facing a residential district except upon issuance of a special use permit issued 
pursuant to Section 5.17 of this Zoning Ordinance. 

The required high-quality materials shall at a minimum extend from ground level to the top of 
the first floor windows with minor accents allowed. The use of materials not included in the list 
of high-quality materials set forth in this Section 6.04(3)b on more than 25% of a building 
elevation will be allowed only upon issuance of a special use permit issued pursuant to Section 
5.17 of this Zoning Ordinance. 

(4) The use of concrete block, precast panels, and/or masonry stucco is permitted as a minor or 
accent building material, but is not permitted for use as a predominant building material. The 
exterior surface of a masonry wall shall consist of a textured finished surface, shall not have a flat 
surface, and shall not be constructed of concrete block or cinder block having a plain, flat surface. 



The use of exterior insulation finishing systems ("EIFS") and metal and vinyl lap board siding is 
prohibited. 

 
5.15 Major variations. 
(7) Standards. In determining whether in a specific case there are practical difficulties or particular 
hardships in the way of carrying out the strict letter of this Zoning Ordinance, there shall be taken into 
consideration the extent to which the following facts are established: 

a. The requested major variation is consistent with the stated intent and purposes of this Zoning 
Ordinance and the Comprehensive Plan; 

b. The particular physical surroundings, shape or topographical conditions of the subject property 
would bring a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if 
the strict letter of this Zoning Ordinance is enforced; 

c. The conditions upon which the petition for the variation is based would not be applicable 
generally to other property within the same zoning district; 

d. The variation is not solely and exclusively for the purpose of enhancing the value of or 
increasing the revenue from the property; 

e. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by any person presently having an 
interest in the property; 

f. The granting of the variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other 
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; 

g. The variation granted is the minimum change to the Zoning Ordinance standards necessary to 
alleviate the practical hardship on the subject property; and 

h. The proposed variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property, 
or substantially increase the danger of fire, or otherwise endanger the public safety, or 
substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood. 

 

 


	2020-12-21 Zoning Board of Appeals Packet
	Documents Attached
	December 21, 2020 Zoning Board of Appeals Agenda
	November 18, 2020 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Minutes (Draft)
	Case #ZB-06-20:  3300-3310 West Devon Avenue Variation to Allow EFIS as an Exterior Building Material
	December 21, 2020 Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report
	Zoning Variation Application
	Relevant Building Plans
	Public Comment
	Relevant Regulations




